
 
 
 

 

Electoral 
Provisions Sub-

Committee 
 

 
 

 

    
 
 

A meeting of the above Sub-Committee will be held on 

 
Monday 12 September 2011 

 
at 7.00pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR 
Tel: 01322 343434 Fax: 01322 343422 Web: www.dartford.gov.uk 

Councillor A Wells (Chairman) 
Councillor C J Shippam(Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor P J Cannon 
Councillor K M Kelly 
Councillor G T Prout  
Councillor B E Read 
Councillor D Swinerd 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 



 

ELECTORAL PROVISIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

 AGENDA 
 

Monday 12 September 2011 
 
 
 

A G E N D A  

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Declarations of Interests   

 To receive any declarations of interest Members may wish to make 
including the term(s) of the Grant of Dispensation(s) by the Standards 
Committee.   
 

 

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 1 August 2011 (Pages 1 - 6)  

 To note the minutes of the meeting held on 1 August 2011.  
 

 

4. Urgent Items   

 The Chairman will announce his decision as to whether there are any 
urgent items and their position on the agenda.  
 

 

ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION IN PUBLIC 

5. References from Other Committees, if any   

6. Response to the Consultation Exercise on the Review of Polling 
Districts and Polling Places 2011 and Proposals for Agreement by 
the General Assembly of the Council (Pages 7 - 80) 

 

 To consider the responses received to the Consultation Exercise on 
the Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places 2011 and to 
recommend to the General Assembly of the Council accordingly.  
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

ELECTORAL PROVISIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES of the meeting of the Electoral Provisions Sub-Committee held on 
Monday 1 August 2011. 

 
PRESENT: 
 

Councillor Anthony Wells (Chairman) 
Councillor Peter John Cannon 
Councillor Keith Martin Kelly 
Councillor Bryan E Read 
Councillor Drew Swinerd 
Councillor Richard John Wells (substitute for Councillor Shippam) 
 

 
ABSENT: 
 

Councillor Chris Shippam 
Councillor Geoffrey T Prout 
 

 
 Dartford Borough Council Officers:- 

 
  – Managing Director 

– Member Services Manager 
– Electoral Services Manager 
– Electoral Services Officer 
 
  

 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Shippam and Prout. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS  
 
Councillor A Wells declared a personal interest in Agenda item 7, Review of 
Polling Districts and Polling Places 2011, as he is a Governor of West Hill 
Primary School which is used as a polling station. 
 
Councillor B E Read declared a personal interest in Agenda item 7, Review of 
Polling Districts and Pollling Places 2011, as he is a member of Swanscombe 
and Greenhithe Town Council and the Town Hall is used as a polling station.  
 

3. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 18 OCTOBER 2010  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Sub-committee held on 18 October 2010 be 
agreed as a correct record. 
 

4. URGENT ITEMS  
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



ELECTORAL PROVISIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

MONDAY 1 AUGUST 2011 
 
 

2 

5. REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES, IF ANY  
 
There were no references from other committees. 
 

6. TERMS OF REFERENCE  
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
That the terms of reference of the Electoral Provisions Sub-Committee be 
noted, including its ability to make recommendations to the Council on matters 
within its terms of reference. 
 

7. REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES 2011  
 
Members considered the report on the Review of Polling Districts and Polling 
Places 2011. The Member Services Manager reminded the Sub-committee 
that it was a requirement that each authority carried out a full review every 
four years and that the next review for Dartford was due to be completed by 
31st December 2011. In practice the review would need to be carried out 
before then in order for any changes to be incorporated in the annual Register 
of Electors to be published on 1st December 2011. Members were advised 
that further reviews could be carried out at any time and that it was the 
Council’s practice to undertake “light touch” reviews annually, with the last 
being reported to the Sub-committee in October 2010. It was stressed that the 
review only related to the proposed polling districts and polling places as 
these were the responsibility of the local authority whereas the provision of 
polling stations remained the responsibility of the Returning Officer. 
 
The legislative requirements for conducting the review were set out as follows: 
 

• The authority must publish the holding of the review by 
publishing a notice on its web site and in a conspicuous place in 
the borough; 

• The authority must consult the Returning Officer on its 
proposals as they apply to existing polling districts and polling 
places or on any proposed changes; 

• The Returning Officer must make representations to the 
authority which must include information as to the location of 
polling stations (existing or proposed) within polling places 
(existing or proposed); 

• The local authority must publish the Returning Officer’s 
representations within 30 calendar days of receipt; 

• The authority must seek representations from such persons as 
it thinks have particular expertise in relation to access to 
premises or facilities for persons who have different forms of 
disability. Such persons must have an opportunity to make 
representations and to comment on the Returning Officer’s 
representations; 

Agenda Item 3 Page 2



ELECTORAL PROVISIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

MONDAY 1 AUGUST 2011 
 
 

3 

• Any elector in a constituency situated in whole or in part in the 
authority’s area may make representations; 

• Representations made by any person in connection with a 
review of polling places may include proposals for specified 
alternative polling places; 

• On completion of the review the authority must give reasons for 
its decisions in the review and publish such other information as 
is prescribed (this includes all documentation forming part of the 
review including any representations or returns made during the 
consultation exercise).    

 
The four main stages of the review were also explained: 
 

• Stage 1 – Notification of the review (by means of publication of 
a notice on the council’s web site and by display in at least one 
conspicuous place within the authority 

• Stage 2- Administering the Review – The local authority should 
undertake a preliminary review of the current polling districts 
and polling places with a view to establishing their suitability 

• Stage 3 – Consultation – the consultation stage was for 
representations and comments on the existing and proposed 
arrangements for polling districts and places. There were two 
parts to this stage: 

o A compulsory submission from the Returning Officer 
which must then be published by the local authority 

o Any submissions from electors and other persons and 
bodies, including disability groups – these would be 
consulted on any proposals made by the Sub-committee 
and the Returning Officer’s proposals; 

• Stage 4 – Concluding the review – After considering all of the 
representations the local authority must decide on the most 
appropriate polling districts and polling places. Once the local 
authority has agreed the proposals they must make details 
available to the public on the Council’s web site and in at least 
one conspicuous place within the borough. All documents 
considered as part of the review, including any representations 
made, must also be published. 

 
Members were advised that stages 1 and 2 had already been completed, that 
notice of the consultation had been published and the preliminary review of 
polling districts and polling places had been carried out. The preliminary 
review was published in the form of tables contained in Appendix B to the 
report for each polling district and polling place which illustrated the electorate 
allocated to each polling district and polling place along with the comparative 
figure for 2007 when the last review had been carried out.  The Returning 
Officer’s proposals in each case were also contained in Appendix B. It was 
noted that Electoral Commission’s recommended maximum figure for the 
number of electors allocated to each polling station was 2,500 and that none 
of the current stations had reached this figure nor had any issues with the 

Agenda Item 3Page 3



ELECTORAL PROVISIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

MONDAY 1 AUGUST 2011 
 
 

4 

existing arrangements become apparent during the recent local elections or 
highlighted from the survey of Presiding Officers carried out as part of the 
post-election review. In view of this the Returning Officer was proposing no 
changes to the existing arrangements. 
 
The Sub-committee was requested to arrive at a preliminary view as to the 
suitability of the existing arrangements with the Polling Districts and Polling 
Places for public consultation during August. It was noted that the results of 
the consultation would need to be reported back to the Sub-committee in 
September before the Sub-committee’s final recommendations could be made 
to the GAC, possibly at its 26 September meeting, but that in view of the 
timescales possibly to a GAC in October/November. 
 
The Sub-committee had regard to the tables and maps contained in the 
Appendix and generally endorsed the Returning Officer’s proposals for no 
changes but identified options for revised arrangements in Summerhouse, 
Greenhithe and Knockhall Polling Districts. It was noted that in submitting his 
apologies for the meeting the Leader of the Labour Group had commented 
that his Group did not wish to make any changes to the existing 
arrangements. 
  
In terms of Summerhouse Polling District Members felt that the current polling 
place located in the Library, Summerhouse Drive was particularly remote for 
the residents of Stonehill Woods Park. It was therefore agreed to investigate 
whether a polling station could be sited in the Park, which would require the 
current polling district to be split into two, and to consult on this as an 
alternative option. 
 
In terms of Greenhithe Polling District Members noted the relatively high and 
growing number of electors within the district and felt that it was worth 
establishing whether an additional polling station could be sited in Ingress 
Park. This could be achieved by retaining the existing mobile unit at Eagles 
Road car park and either locating a mobile unit on the riverfront walkway or, if 
this was not possible then whether to base an additional station at the British 
Legion Club, London Road which would then become a double station serving 
the residents of both Greenhithe and Knockhall Polling Districts. This would 
involve dividing the polling district into two new districts with a demarcation 
line along the Avenue. The possibility of using the proposed new 
management centre for Ingress Park as a possible polling station location in 
the future was also mentioned.  
 
With regard to Knockhall Polling District it was also noted that the electorate 
was at the top end of the range and also felt that a more central location for 
the polling station should be considered, possibly by relocating the existing 
station from the British Legion Club, London Road to the Greenhithe 
Community Centre. 
 
It was agreed that these options would be included in the consultation 
proposals and the outcome reported back to the Sub-committee at its next 
meeting. 

Agenda Item 3 Page 4



ELECTORAL PROVISIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

MONDAY 1 AUGUST 2011 
 
 

5 

 
 RESOLVED: 
 

(1) That the Sub-committee agrees the proposed timetable for the 
review, with any subsequent changes to be agreed in consultation with 
the Chairman; 

(2) That the Sub-Committee’s views on the current polling districts and 
places and the options identified during the meeting be noted; 

(3) That the Returning Officer’s comments on all existing polling 
stations used at elections and options for change be noted; 

(4) That the Sub-Committee’s initial review of polling districts and 
polling places be put out to public consultation during August 2011 
together with the Returning Officer’s comments on polling stations; 
and  

(5) That the organisations listed in paragraph 5.3 of the report be invited 
to comment as part of the consultation exercise.        

 
  
 
 
 

The meeting closed at 7.26 pm 
 
  

 
 

Councillor A Wells 
CHAIRMAN 

Agenda Item 3Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



Electoral Provisions Sub-Committee 
 12 September 2011 

REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES 2011- 
OUTCOME OF PUBLIC CONSULTATION EXERCISE AND 
RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE 
COUNCIL 

 
 
1. Summary 

 
1.1 To report the responses received from the public consultation exercise carried 

out as part of the  review the polling districts and polling places in the Dartford 
constituency area and to make recommendations for consideration by the 
General Assembly of the Council on 26 September 2011. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1  That the Sub-committee notes the public consultation document issued as part 

of the Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places 2011 (Appendix A). 

2.2    That the Sub-Committee notes the responses submitted during the 
consultation exercise (Appendices B and C) and considers the 
recommendations of the Returning Officer as to the location of Polling Districts 
and Polling Places (Appendix D) in light of the submissions received and the 
Returning Officer’s comments. 

2.3  That the Sub-committee formulate its recommendations for agreement by the 
General Assembly of the Council on 26 September 2011.  

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 

3.1 The Representation of the People Act 1983 places a duty on the 
Council to divide the borough into polling districts for the purposes of 
parliamentary elections and to designate a polling place for each 
district and to keep these arrangements under review.  

 
3.2 Under the provisions of Section 16 of the Electoral Administration Act 

2006, Dartford Borough Council must undertake and complete a review 
of all the polling districts and polling places in the Borough at least 
once every 4 years. The last general review in Dartford was carried out 
in 2007. Since then no polling district has been altered, although some 
polling places have been changed when building works have affected 
the usual designated place. These changes were most recently 
reported to the Sub-committee in October 2010. 

 
3.3 A full review of all of the polling districts and polling places in the 

Borough is now due and must be completed by 31 December 2011. 
However in practice the review must be completed much sooner so 
that if any changes are identified these can be incorporated in the 
publication of the Annual Register of Electors which takes effect on 1 
December 2011. 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 6Page 7



Electoral Provisions Sub-Committee 
 12 September 2011 

 
4. The Requirements of the Review 

 
4.1 The Sub-Committee can only consider the proposed polling districts 

and places as part of this review, as these are the responsibility of the 
local authority.  The locations and provision of polling stations remains 
the responsibility of the Returning Officer. 

 
4.2 The difference between a polling district, a polling place and a polling 

station is outlined below: 
 
A polling district is a geographical sub-division of an electoral area, 
i.e. a UK Parliamentary constituency, a European Parliamentary 
electoral region, a ward or an electoral division. 
 
A polling place is a geographical area in which a polling station is 
located. 
 
However, as there is no legal definition of what a polling place is, the 
geographical area could be defined as tightly as a particular building or 
as widely as the entire polling district. 

 
A polling station is the actual area where the process of voting takes 
place, and must be located within the polling place designated for the 
particular polling district. 
 

4.3 In conducting the statutory review local authorities must follow the rules 
set out in legislation which are that: 
 

• The authority must publish the holding of the review by 
publishing a notice on its web site and in a conspicuous place in 
the borough; 

• The authority must consult the Returning Officer on its 
proposals as they apply to existing polling districts and polling 
places or on any proposed changes; 

• The Returning Officer must make representations to the 
authority which must include information as to the location of 
polling stations (existing or proposed) within polling places 
(existing or proposed); 

• The local authority must publish the Returning Officer’s 
representations within 30 calendar days of receipt; 

• The authority must seek representations from such persons as 
it thinks have particular expertise in relation to access to 
premises or facilities for persons who have different forms of 
disability. Such persons must have an opportunity to make 
representations and to comment on the Returning Officer’s 
representations; 

• Any elector in a constituency situated in whole or in part in the 
authority’s area may make representations; 

• Representations made by any person in connection with a 
review of polling places may include proposals for specified 
alternative polling places; 

Agenda Item 6 Page 8



Electoral Provisions Sub-Committee 
 12 September 2011 

• On completion of the review the authority must give reasons for 
its decisions in the review and publish such other information as 
is prescribed (this includes all documentation forming part of the 
review including any representations or returns made during the 
consultation exercise). 

 
 
4.4 The Stages of the Review Process     

 
 There are 4 stages to the review 
 

• Stage 1 – Notification of the review (by means of publication of 
a notice on the council’s web site and by display in at least one 
conspicuous place within the authority) 

• Stage 2- Administering the Review – The local authority should 
undertake a preliminary review of the current polling districts 
and polling places with a view to establishing their suitability 

• Stage 3 – Consultation – the consultation stage is for 
representations and comments on the existing and proposed 
arrangements for polling districts and places. There are two 
parts to this stage: 

o A compulsory submission from the Returning Officer 
which must then be published by the local authority 

o Any submissions from electors and other persons and 
bodies, including disability groups – these will be 
consulted on any proposals made by the Sub-committee 
and the Returning Officer’s proposals 

• Stage 4 – Concluding the review – After considering all of the 
representations the local authority must decide on the most 
appropriate polling districts and polling places. Once the local 
authority has agreed the proposals they must make details 
available to the public on the Council’s web site and in at least 
one conspicuous place within the borough. All documents 
considered as part of the review, including any representations 
made, must also be published. 

 
Following the completion of the review certain people may make 
representations to the Electoral Commission if they believe that the 
authority has failed to conduct a proper review which would be 
considered by the Electoral Commission. The grounds for making 
representations are however limited. 
 

 
5. The Public Consultation Process 
  
5.1 The Sub-committee considered the arrangements for existing polling 

districts and polling places at its meeting on 1st August 2011 and the 
Returning Officer’s initial recommendations that no changes were 
needed to the arrangements already in place given the Council’s 
practice of reviewing its arrangements annually. 

5.2 The Sub-committee generally supported the Returning Officer’s view 
and noted that none of the current polling stations had reached the 

Agenda Item 6Page 9



Electoral Provisions Sub-Committee 
 12 September 2011 

Electoral Commission’s guideline limit of no more than 2,500 electors 
to a polling station but asked for consideration to be given to alternative 
options in three Polling Districts: 

 DA – Greenhithe Polling District 

 1. No Change. Mobile unit based at Eagles Road car park. 
2. Retain the mobile unit at Eagles Road car park and locate an 
additional mobile polling station in Ingress Park – possibly along the 
river walkway. This would involve dividing the polling district into two 
new polling districts with the divide running along The Avenue. 
3. Retain the mobile unit at Eagles Road car park and locate an 
additional polling station at the British Legion Club, London Road to 
serve electors from Greenhithe Polling  District. This would also involve 
splitting the polling district into two districts.  

DB – Knockhall Polling District 

1. No Change. Retain a polling station at the British Legion Club, 
London Road. 
2. Move the polling station from the British Legion Club, London Road 
to the Greenhithe Community Centre. 
3. If option 3 of the options for Greenhithe Polling District is adopted, 
locate two polling stations at the British Legion Club, London Road. 
This is located on the boundary between Greenhithe and Knockhall 
Polling districts – one polling station would serve part of Greenhithe 
and the other Knockhall. 

GB- Summerhouse Polling District 

1. No Change 
2. Provision of an additional mobile polling station at Stonehill Woods 
Park. This would mean dividing the polling district into two districts. 

 These options were incorporated along with the Returning Officer’s 
proposals into the document issued for public consultation immediately 
after the meeting. This document appears at Appendix A to this report.  

5.3 Notice of the consultation exercise was displayed at the Civic Centre 
and at Dartford Library and on the Council’s web site where the 
consultation document was also published. Any elector or interested 
organisation could make representations either online or by writing or 
emailing the Electoral Services Team. Responses were invited by 31 
August 2011. An article publicising the consultation appeared in the 
Newshopper on 10 August 2011 and a public notice was published in 
The Reporter on 18 August 2011 (Appendix E). The Council is required 
to make all materials considered as part of the review publicly available 
and this will be done at the conclusion of the review.  

5.4 The Council also wrote to the organisations listed below to invite them 
to participate in the consultation and contacted all members of the 
Council to invite their views and comments:  

• Political Parties – those who stood in the last elections 

• Member of Parliament 

Agenda Item 6 Page 10



Electoral Provisions Sub-Committee 
 12 September 2011 

• Town and Parish Councils 

• Children with Disabilities Team 

• Paediatric Physiotherapist 

• DGSM 

• Family Action 

• D.I.A.L. NW Kent – (Disablement Information & Advice Lines) 

• The Parents Consortium 

• Age Concern  

• Kent Association for the Disabled 

• Ellenor Lions Hospice  

• KASBAH, The Kent Association for Spina Bifida & Hydrocephalus 

• Simon Paul Foundation 

• Epilepsy Network Gravesend 

• Home-Start North West Kent 

• Dartford Community Mental Health Team 

• Racial Equality Council 

• Residents Forum 
 
These organisations were contacted as they were considered to have 
experience or expertise in terms of accessibility for disabled people. 
Comments were invited by using the SNAP on-line consultation tool, by 
email or by post.   

6. The Response to the Public Consultation Exercise 

 By the end of 31 August 2011 six responses had been received.  

Of these two had not proposed any changes (Appendix B) and four had 
suggested alternative options or offered opinions (Appendix C) as 
follows:  

6.1 DA – Greenhith Polling District and DB – Knockhall Polling District 

Of the responses supporting change three related to the options for 
revised polling arrangements in the Greenhithe and Knockhall Polling 
Districts.  

One favoured having two polling locations in Greenhithe Polling 
District, a temporary polling station located at Eagles Road car park 
and re-designating the station at the British Legion Club, London Road 
to serve the residents of Ingress Park and Worcester Road. In respect 
of Knockhall Polling District it was suggested that this should cease to 
be served by the British Legion Club and that the polling station for this 
district should be moved to the Greenhithe Community Centre.    

The local MP had also responded and felt that additional provision was 
needed in the Greenhithe area to serve the Ingress Park development. 
He suggested locating a polling station in the new Community Centre 
in Ingress Park once this had been completed with a temporay station 
located on the green if elections took place beforehand. 

The Town Clerk of Swanscombe and Greenhithe Town Council also 
submitted a list of current halls/community facilities in Greenhithe and 
Knockhall which included the British Legion Club and Greenhithe 

Agenda Item 6Page 11



Electoral Provisions Sub-Committee 
 12 September 2011 

Community Centre and potential locations once development work had 
been completed. However the Town Council did not express any 
preferred location or submit any direct request for change other than its 
“support for the need to make voting means available to residents as 
easy as possible and where halls are not possible mobile stations 
should be available”. 

6.2 IB – Southfleet West Polling District 

The Parish Clerk of Southfleet Parish Council responded to the on-line 
consultation exercise recommending a change of location from the 
current location, a mobile unit in a layby outside the former Colyers 
Arms Public House, Station Road, Betsham. It was suggested that 
although  the location is currently suitable this may not continue to be 
the case once redevelopment of the former public house car park for 
housing has been completed. An alternative location for a mobile unit 
in the amenity area opposite Betsham House was proposed. 

6.3 GB – Summerhouse Polling District 

In his submission the local MP commented that “further provision is 
also needed in the Joydens Wood area but did not suggest alternative 
options. 

7. The Returning Officer’s Response to Options previously identified by 
the Sub-committee and during the Consultation Exercise 

7.1 DA – Greenhithe Polling District 

 The Returning Officer has considered the options suggested for the 
polling district and does not see a viable alternative to retaining the 
mobile unit at the Eagles Road Car Park. However the need to provide 
for growth in Ingress Park in the future is recognised. This could be 
achieved by locating a double polling station at the British Legion Club 
on London Road as this is on the boundary of the two existing polling 
districts. One would serve Greenhithe and the other Knockhall. The 
British Legion Club is large enough to accommodate a double station 
but care would be needed to ensure that voters are directed to the 
correct polling station. The alternative of siting an additional mobile unit 
along the river walkway, possibly at the end of Portland Place on the 
river frontage, would require permission by the landowner which may 
or may not be forthcoming but is not considered to be as suitable as 
the British Legion building. 

 The Returning Officer is recommending that the existing mobile unit 
should be retained at Eagles Road car park and an additional polling 
station should be located at the British Legion Club, London Road to 
serve Greenhithe.  This will involve splitting the current polling district 
into two new districts divided along The Avenue; DA – Greenhithe 
(mobile unit ,Eagles Road car park) and DB – Ingress Park (British 
Legion Club, London Road)  

 

 

Agenda Item 6 Page 12



Electoral Provisions Sub-Committee 
 12 September 2011 

7.2 DB- Knockhall Polling District 

 The Returning Officer has considered the suggestion that the polling 
place for this polling district should be moved to Greenhithe Community 
Centre. This has the advantage of being more central. Officers have 
visited the Community Centre and consider it to be a suitable building. 
However the Community Centre, located off Alexander Road, is 
considered to be difficult to locate. 

 Whilst a move to the Community Centre would allow the British Legion 
Club to remain as a single station, but serving Greenhithe Polling 
District, there is likely to be considerable confusion for electors from 
Knockhall who are used to voting at the British Legion Club and will be 
unfamiliar with the Community Centre which also has a single point of 
access. 

 The Returning Officer is recommending that the existing arrangements 
are retained and that the polling place for Knockhall should remain at 
the British Legion Club which would then house a double polling 
station. 

7.3 GB – Summerhouse Polling District        

 The Returning Officer has considered the suggestion that an additional 
mobile station should be located at Stonehill Woods Park. This is 
considered to be impracticable in view of the very poor access to this 
site and difficult to justify in terms of the electorate. Currently there are 
172 electors residing at Stonehill Woods Park of whom 40% have a 
postal vote. 

 The Returning Officer is recommending no change. The polling district 
would continue to be served by a single polling station located at the 
Library, Summerhouse Drive. 

7.4 IB – Southfleet West Polling District 

 The Returning Officer has considered the Parish Council’s alternative 
proposal to base a mobile unit in the amenity area opposite Betsham 
House. Alternative locations in this district are limited given the rural 
nature of the area. Officers have visited the proposed alternative 
location and do consider it to be a suitable location with the advantage 
of being within sight of the previous polling place with which local 
residents will be familiar. In addition future use of the current polling 
place where residential garages will open into the layby could be 
problematic. 

 The Returning Officer is recommending that the polling place should be 
located on the amenity area opposite Betsham House as 
recommended by the Parish Council. 

8 Conclusions and Recommendations 
 

The Sub-committee is asked to give consideration to the 
recommendations made by the Returning Officer throughout the review 
and to the responses to the public consultation exercise and to 

Agenda Item 6Page 13



Electoral Provisions Sub-Committee 
 12 September 2011 

recommend accordingly to the General Assembly of the Council. The 
Returning Officer’s revised recommendations are attached at Appendix 
D. 
 
Once the Sub-committee has made its recommendations these will 
submitted to the General Assembly of the Council with a short covering 
report on 26 September 2011 for approval.  

  
 
 
 
9. Appendices 
 

Appendix A – Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places 2011 – 
Public Consultation Document  
 
Appendix B – Responses to Public Consultation – No Change 
 
Appendix C – Responses to Public Consultation – Options 
 
Appendix D – The Returning Officer’s Final Recommendations  
 
Appendix E – Newspaper cuttings. 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents consulted Date / 
File Ref 

Report Author Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 
Electoral Commission 
Circular EC19/2010 
 
Review of Polling Districts 
and Polling Places Public  

 A Twyman 
(01322) 343430 

Member 
Services / 
Executive 
Directorate 

N/A 

 

Agenda Item 6 Page 14



Appendix A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES 
2011 

 
 

PUBLIC CONSULTATION DOCUMENT 
 

Agenda Item 6Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6Page 17



Agenda Item 6 Page 18



Agenda Item 6Page 19



Agenda Item 6 Page 20



Agenda Item 6Page 21



Agenda Item 6 Page 22



Agenda Item 6Page 23



Agenda Item 6 Page 24



Agenda Item 6Page 25



Agenda Item 6 Page 26



Agenda Item 6Page 27



Agenda Item 6 Page 28



Agenda Item 6Page 29



Agenda Item 6 Page 30



Agenda Item 6Page 31



Agenda Item 6 Page 32



Agenda Item 6Page 33



Agenda Item 6 Page 34



Agenda Item 6Page 35



Agenda Item 6 Page 36



Agenda Item 6Page 37



Agenda Item 6 Page 38



Agenda Item 6Page 39



Agenda Item 6 Page 40



Agenda Item 6Page 41



Agenda Item 6 Page 42



Agenda Item 6Page 43



Agenda Item 6 Page 44



Agenda Item 6Page 45



Agenda Item 6 Page 46



Agenda Item 6Page 47



Agenda Item 6 Page 48



Agenda Item 6Page 49



Agenda Item 6 Page 50



Agenda Item 6Page 51



Agenda Item 6 Page 52



Agenda Item 6Page 53



Agenda Item 6 Page 54



Agenda Item 6Page 55



Agenda Item 6 Page 56



A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 6
P

a
g
e
 5

7



A
g

e
n
d

a
 Ite

m
 6

P
a

g
e
 5

8



A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 6
P

a
g
e
 5

9



A
g

e
n
d

a
 Ite

m
 6

P
a

g
e
 6

0



A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 6
P

a
g
e
 6

1



A
g

e
n
d

a
 Ite

m
 6

P
a

g
e
 6

2



A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 6
P

a
g
e
 6

3



A
g

e
n
d

a
 Ite

m
 6

P
a

g
e
 6

4



A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 6
P

a
g
e
 6

5



A
g

e
n
d

a
 Ite

m
 6

P
a

g
e
 6

6



A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 6
P

a
g
e
 6

7



A
g

e
n
d

a
 Ite

m
 6

P
a

g
e
 6

8



A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 6
P

a
g
e
 6

9



A
g

e
n
d

a
 Ite

m
 6

P
a

g
e
 7

0



A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 6
P

a
g
e
 7

1



A
g

e
n
d

a
 Ite

m
 6

P
a

g
e
 7

2



A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 6
P

a
g
e
 7

3



A
g

e
n
d

a
 Ite

m
 6

P
a

g
e
 7

4



A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 6
P

a
g
e
 7

5



A
g

e
n
d

a
 Ite

m
 6

P
a

g
e
 7

6



A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 6
P

a
g
e
 7

7



A
g

e
n
d

a
 Ite

m
 6

P
a

g
e
 7

8



A
g
e
n
d
a

 Ite
m

 6
P

a
g
e
 7

9



A
g

e
n
d

a
 Ite

m
 6

P
a

g
e
 8

0


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 1 August 2011
	6 Response to the Consultation Exercise on the Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places 2011 and Proposals for Agreement by the General Assembly of the Council
	Appendix A COVER SHEET
	Appendix A - PollingDistricts Review Consultation document
	Appendices B-E rotated


